OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

Tuesday, October 16, 2007
Great Brook School

7 p.m.
MINUTES
BOARD ADMINISTRATION
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon, Richard Bergeron, Supt.
Stewart Brock, Ray Cote, Don Johnson, Asst. Supt.
Butch Estey, Bart Goodeve, Marian Alese, B.A.
Dan Harper, Craig Hicks, Linda Potter, SpEd.
Arthur Knight, Mary Loftis, Sue Copley, PES
Bill McKinnon, Tom Welden Sue Dell, CVHS
Katherine Langlois, GBS
Beth San Martino, CVEA Deb Lesure, AES
Pamela Matthews, Pierce
Gib West, GBS

Jeanie West, SMS

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

2. Minutes (Board Vote Required)

a. October 2, 2007 (Pgs. 1-20)
Butch Estey moved to accept the minutes of the October 2, 2007 meeting as read. Craig
Hicks second. Stewart Brock, Mary Allen, and Arthur Knight abstained. All else in favor.

3. Public Comment
None.

4. Great Brook Presentation

Gib West introduced GBS staff present at tonight's meeting. Gib also introduced John Vance from
Monadnock Connect present to speak. John Vance said that Monadnock Connect is a broadband
initiative. The idea was to find ways to bring more affordable Internet service as well as promote
competition to provide better Internet pricing. Money is given out to various organizations to
provide better connectivity. John named some of the various organizations in which Monadnock
Connect has given monies. John said that after learning of the technology endeavor at GBS and
of the Hale’s, it was easy to decide where to give $4,400 of the remaining funds.

Craig Hicks moved to accept the $4,400 gift from Monadnock Connect. Butch Estey
second. Unanimous.

Gib said that a second gift was learned of today. Peggy Brown agreed to present further in the
meeting.

Gib said that he would like to take the opportunity tonight to share some of the initiatives taking
place at GBS. He introduced Terry Settig who is present to speak about the literacy project (See



Attachment #1). She asked all present to go back to the 7" grade where our teacher might ask us
to read a poem and to respond. She read a poem titled Arithmetic by Carl Sandburg. She asked
what the purpose of the poem was. She read the response of a 7" grader to this prompt. Terry
said the vision for them for all of the students is to arrive where the student response that she read
had arrived.

A sampling of reading materials was displayed. Anne Staley said that music lyrics are used to
motivate children to read. Magazines are an available resource as well. Anne said that they want
students to talk to each other about what they are reading and this happens readily with
magazines. Picture books are used for direct instruction using short text for comprehension
strategies. She said that she is thrilled with the literary resources available to them.

Carol Ripley introduced four of her students present to provide examples of what takes place for
each of them around literacy.

Jane Gnade and student R.J. Carney were present to explain what “Advisory” was at GBS. Jane
said that attendance and check-in take place during advisory. In addition, they meet three times a
week to help students develop self-awareness, group skills, problem-solving skills, and listening
skills. R.J. said that they practice being criticized in proper ways and learn to accept criticism. In
addition, R.J. said that it allows students to mix with students in different grades that they wouldn't
normally interact with. Ground rules were set and personality traits were identified.

Nancy Blair and Linda Compton spoke about Wellness (See Attachment #2). Linda Compton said
that they have an annual school-wide dance to promote dance as an activity with healthy snacks.
She said that morning dance has taken place in the past to promote morning activity.

Peggy Brown and Maggie Picard spoke about STRIVE, a program that occurred in the past for the
6™ grade class and how it tied into this year’s trip for 7" grade students to travel to Nobleboro, ME.
The mission of the Kieve Leadership School in Maine is to empower young people and the adults
who affect them to contribute positively to society by providing a wide range of experiential
educational opportunities. She explained that through grant money, this trip was made possible.
Peggy said that they approached three organizations for funding. The Gilbert Verney Foundation
and the Biddy Foundation have provided funding to help make this trip possible.

Tom Welden asked for a motion to accept $ 7,000 from the Biddy foundation.

Craig Hicks moved to accept a gift of $7,000 from the Biddy Foundation. Butch Estey
second with gratitude. Unanimous.

Peggy Brown said that 90 students are expected to attend this trip in November. It is a five-day,
four night trip. Maggie Picard thanked the Board for their support in making this trip possible.
Tom Welden thanked them for taking the initiative to undertake this trip.

Gib said that when he came to GBS he learned that there are many ways to extend education
beyond the walls of the school.

He introduced the 5™ grade teaching team who shared some of their field experiences that have
been integrated into their classroom. They provided examples, which included a potluck supper,
field trips, and a student presentation on falcons.

Janet Pietrovito and students explained their experience with Exchange City in Portsmouth, NH.
They learned that businesses depend on other businesses for survival. They experienced how it
might feel to work in business and what was necessary to survive. An election takes place before
attending Exchange City. Those best suitable for the job are elected into positions. Students ran
against students, which was difficult because they were friends. Lessons were learned about



earning, saving, and spending money. Depending on the “rank” of your job made a difference in
how much money you earned. Fines were given for unfavorable behavior.

Kathleen Bigford, Extended Learning teacher, spoke about two programs. One was work with
students at Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center where GBS students followed a Crotched
Mtn. Student’s schedule with them. A partnership took place on a weekly basis. It helped bridge
an understanding for each of the students about what a day looks like for each of them.

The second is called Performance Workshop with eighth grade students. Kathleen said that it is
ensemble performing. They come together to perform a piece. The minimum requirement is that
they perform five minor pieces and one major.

Sarah Hale provided a progress report on technology at GBS (See Attachment #4). Sarah said
that as of today there are 72 student access sites for student computing at GBS. She said that the
students have experienced a very smooth transition since its implementation. The group was
invited to the library to experience the Thin Client devices where they logged on and experienced
what it had to offer.

5. Consent Agenda
a. October 1 Enroliments (Pgs. 21-28)
Dick Bergeron asked all to view the 2006 enrollment projections enclosed in tonight’s packet.

b. 2006 NESDEC Enroliment Projections (Pgs. 29- 37)
Dick noted that enrollment figures were very accurate compared to NESDEC’s predictions. The
comparisons tell us that AES is a school that has had the largest decline in enrollment. GBS has
also experienced decline, as did CVHS. They bring about staffing concerns in those areas. Dick
said that all but one grade level was lower than what was projected. Dick said that numbers are
submitted to NESDEC for future projections.

c. Five Year Paraprofessional History (Pg. 38)
Dick referenced page 38, “5 Year Para History”. He said that our Para ratio between bodies and
FTE'’s is becoming closely aligned.

d. Five Year Homeschool Comparison (Pgs. 39 — 41)
Dick noted that the totals are consistent in our communities. There is an extraordinary range in our
towns in terms of home school families.
Stewart Brock asked if information was available about students in the district that attend private
school. Dick said that Child Find participation is voluntary.

e. CIP/Strategic Planning SAMPLE (Pg. 42)
Dick cited a sample tool on page 42. He said the belief is that staffing changes can be forecast
into the future that is the same as predicting paving or roof repair. He said almost all CIP plans
have been collected from the towns. Strategic planning with regard to tax rate hits can be
reviewed.

f. Language Arts Professional Development Opportunities (Pgs. 43-44)
Dick said that recommended opportunities of professional development are included.

g. Bullying Report (Pgs. 45 - 48)
Bullying Report status is included in tonight’s packet.

h. Organizational Charts (Pgs. 49-50)
Pages 49 and 50 include organizational charts for both the SAU Office and the School Board.



i. NH State Board of Education Agenda (Pgs. 51-52)
Included in tonight’s packet are agenda copies.

j- NEASG&C Visiting Teams (Pgs. 53-54)
Included in tonight’s packet on pages 53-54.

6. Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business
a. Request to Accept Donation (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 55-64)

1. Antrim Elementary School has received from Target Stores, “Take Charge of
Education” Program, a donation of $59.83 for student activities

2. Pierce Elementary School has received from Target Stores, “Take Charge of
Education” Program, a donation of $39.88

3. Dublin Consolidated School has received from Target Stores, “Take Charge of
Education” Program, a donation of $72.45 for student activities

4. Dublin Consolidated School has received from Emmanuel Church a donation of
$100 to help support field trips

5. Dublin Consolidated School has received from the Dublin Community Foundation
a donation of $615 for the purpose of Ferry Beach Scholarships

6. Hancock Elementary School has received from Target Stores, “Take Charge of
Education” Program, a donation of $65.90 for student activities

7. Great Brook School has received from Target Stores, “Take Charge of Education”
Program, a donation of $67.84 for student activities

8. South Meadow School has received from Target Stores, “Take Charge of
Education” Program, a donation of $52.48 for student activities

9. South Meadow School has received from Webber Foundations a donation of
$100 in labor for the compost slab

10.ConVal High School — Robotics Team has received from Mr. & Mrs. Cyrus Gregg
of Peterborough, a donation of $100 for the Robotics Team

Butch Estey moved to accept the donations listed in items 1-3 and 6-8 above from Target
Stores. Mary Allen second. Unanimous.

Craig Hicks moved to accept $100.00 in labor from Webber Foundations. Dan Harper
second. Unanimous.

Mary Allen moved to accept donations from both the Emmanuel Church and the Dublin
Community Foundation listed in items 4 and 5 above. Butch Estey second. Unanimous.

Craig Hicks moved to accept a $100 donation from Mr. & Mrs. Gregg for the Robotics team
listed in item 10 above. Stewart Brock second. Unanimous.

b. Nominations — Co-Curricular, Technology and Web Page Coordinators (Board
Vote Required) (Pgs. 65 - 78)
Dick referenced the positions included in tonight's packet. He asked the Board to accept the
nominations presented.

Butch Estey moved to accept the nominations listed in tonight’s packet on pages 65 — 78 as
listed. Arthur Knight second. Bill McKinnon opposed. All else in favor.



Dick referenced the Winter Sports nominations presented tonight (See Attachment #5) He asked
the Board to accept the nominations as listed.

Butch Estey moved to accept the Winter Sports nominations as listed. Stewart Brock
second. Unanimous.

c. Approval of Job Descriptions (Board Vote Required)
1. Director of Special Education (Pgs. 79-81)
Dick said that this is a new job description that he is presenting tonight. Input can be provided at
the next meeting. He noted that an evaluation tool is included as well.

2. Business Administrator (Pgs. 82-84)
Dick said that this job description includes a revision.

d. Budget Expense Report (Handout)
Dick referenced the Budget Expense Report and said that he is proud of Marian’s work. Marian
explained the document (See attachment #6), which includes budget expense information.
Dick asked if this model worked for the Board. It would be accompanied with special notes of
items that “jump off of the page”.
Craig asked if fuel oil was at zero because we filled up last year. Marian confirmed.
Bart asked if there was a synopsis on the general rules for encumbrance.
Dan Harper asked about line #26/rental and if we were unaware that we would be renting. Marian
said that it is for the Alternative Classroom and that we were unaware that we would have to rent
the portables.
Discussion about this document being made available electronically was discussed. Further
discussion would take place at later meetings.

e. Monthly Events Calendar (Pgs. 85-86)
The Budget & Property meeting scheduled for October 22" was moved to October 29" at 6:00
with Education to follow at 7:00 p.m.

The next Board meeting will take place on November 6™ at 7:00 p.m. at the SAU.

Tom asked that we consider ways to minimize the agenda and items. Tonight's document was in
excess of 80 pages. Consideration will be given.

Stewart Brock said that he was asked by the newly formed Parents Association to link their site to
the ConVal site so that parents can access their social networking.
Dick said that he has concerns and he would get back to Stewart.

7. Old Business
None.

8. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)

Marian certified that manifests 41 — 47 totaling $ 372,500.18 and Payroll 8 totaling $ 825,065.43 as
well as Sub Run 106 and 107 totaling $ 19,297.24 have been reviewed by me and found to be
proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or services received
and have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.

Ray Cote moved to accept the approval of the manifests as read. Craig Hicks second.
Unanimous.



9. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A: 3,lic
a. Negotiations

Dan Harper motioned to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3, lic at
9:15 p.m. to discuss two items related to negotiations. Unanimous.

Butch Estey moved to exit non-public session at 9:40 p.m. Stewart Brock second.
Unanimous.

Arthur Knight moved to seal the minutes of non-public session at 9:40 p.m. Craig Hicks
second. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



